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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS (CONTINUED) g
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 ’
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The dates above show when each school joined the Trust
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company l;lmited by _Guérantee)

* TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees present their Annual Report logsther with the financial stalements and Auditor's Report, of the
charitable company for the year 1st’ September 2021 to' 31st August 2022, The Annual Report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees" report and a Directors’ report under company law.

The Trust operales 6 schools in North West Surrey and Aldershot, Hampshire. All the schools are primary
schools.

Byfleet Primary Schoo! (BPS)

The Cambridge Primary School (CPS)

Maybury Primary School (MPS)

Ravenscote Juhior School (RJS) .
South Camberley Primary and Nursery School (SCPNS)

Westfield Primary School (WPS)

«a & & & s =

The Multi Academy Trust was incorporated on 1st December 2014 with Ravenscote Junior School.

On the 1st December 2017, South Camberley Primary and Nursery School converted and jolned the Trust.
On st July 2018, Westfield Primary S.chool converted and joined the Trust.

The Cambridge Priméty Schbo! joined the Trust when it opened on 1st September 2018.

On 1st June 2019 Maybury Primary Schoo) converted and joined the Trust

On 1st May 2020 Byflest Primary canverted and joined the Trust,

School BPS cPS MPS RJS SCPNS wPS
PAN- (Number 240 240 210 820 840 480
onroll)

Cumrent numbers 221 235 212 619 618 366

The schools have a combined pupll capacily of 2600 This is for the age range 4 to 11 years old. There are two
nursery settings with a total capaclty of 165 and 100 children were registered at the settings.

In January 2022 the Trust consulted on reducing the published admissions number (PAN) at South Camberley -
Primary and Nursery School dué to a low birth rate. The PAN will be reduced from 120 to 90 in 2023/24. This
wil reduce the school capacity to 630 from September 2023-24. In March 2022 the Trust reduced the PAN in
years 1 to 6 to 90, which means the schools current capacity Is 660. The figures above are based.on
September 2021.

In comman with the whole sector, this has been a very challenging year for Engage, Enrich, Excel Academies

(EEEA) and the Board would like to thank all the staff and govemors within our schools who have helped to
davelop the Multl Academy Trust (MAT) and support the families within our care.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Structure, Govemance and Management

Constitution
The Mulli Academy Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee (Company Registration Number
09279884).

The charitable company’s Trust Deed is the primary goveming document of the Multi Academy Trust,

The Trustees of Engage, Enrich, Excel Academles are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purpose of company law.

Detalls of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the reference and administrative detalls on
page 1.

The principal objective of the Multi Academy Trust is to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United
Kingdom, In particular but without prejudice, to the generalily of the foregoing by establighing, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum,

Members' Liability

Each membaer of the charitable company underlakes to contribule to the assets of the charilable company in the
event of It being wound up while they are a member, or within ane year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceading £10, for the debts and Hiabilities contracted before they ceased to be

a8

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or E|ection of Trgsteés

member.

3

The management of the Mulll Academy Trust Is the responsibility of the Trustees wha are slected and co-opted
under the terms of the Atlicles of Association.

Palicies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Trusteas are instructed to follow the Code of Conduct Issued annually. New Trustees are provided with a
mentor during the first year of their term of office and an induction programme has been developed and
documented.

Organisational Structure
~The govemance structure consists of 4 levels, The Members ensure the Trustees from the MAT Board are

operating with tha aims of the Multi Academy Trust (MAT). Under the MAT Board Trustees, each school has a
Local Advisory Committes to oversee the running of the school which then operate their own sub-committees.

Each school's Local Advisory Committee has its own powers under a Scheme of Delegation designated by the
Trustees, and every level of govemance operates within the Mulll Academy Trust agreed ‘Terms of Reference’.

The Board of Trustaes has considered its role thoughtfully and decided that the rale of the Trustees is to
approve the strategic direction and objectives of the Charitable Company and monitor ils progress towards
these objectives, * '

Trustees are responsible for selting general policy, adopling an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
Charitable Company by use of budgets, and making major decisions about the direction of the Charilable
Company, including capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The Charitable Company has established a management structure to enable its efficient running. The structure
cansists of three levels:

the Board (including the CEO) supported by the Chlef Operating Officer;

the Senior Management Team which consists of the Headteachers of each school within the MAT and the
Chief Operating Officer;

each school has its own Headteacher who manages their own school's Senlor Leadership Team (SLT).
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

« TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trust operates a National Support School from Revenscote Junior School. The National Support School
shares ‘best practice’ and dellvers 'School Improvement’ to schools inside and outside the MAT.
There are currently the following committees for the Mulli Academy Trust:

Audit and Risk Commiftee

EEEA has an Audit and Risk Committee comprising no fewer than three members, two of whom are non-

exacutive members, Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board of Trustees. The Committee's
quorum is two non-executive members. The Commiftee is chaired by a non-executive member.

-The Audit and Risk Committee meels at least four times each year. The Audil and Risk Committes provides
scrul(ny’overslght and assirance of risk management, intemal control and governance procedures o the CEQ,
as Accounting Officer, and to the Board including:

+ The review of EEEA's Annua! Report and financial statements, recommending them lo the Board:for
approval
EEEA's financlal and accounting policles, processes and practices, including IT
EEEA's intemal control systems including policies for addressing fraud and arrangements for internal audit;
in particular, to appoint intemal auditors, approve thair work plan and review their reports and responses of
management
The Implementation of recommendations from internal and extemal audit reporls
The amangements for controlling and reporting EEEA expenditure
EEEA's assessment and management of risk, including failure o comply with laws and regulation, reporting
its views on EEEA's risk management to the Board

« The results of annual audit by the external auditors, including their management letter and the response by
management

»  Corporate governance amangements, reporting annually to the Board on the Committee's view of the
govemance of EEEA and on the Committea's own effectiveness

» Reviewing and racommending any necessary changes to financial poficies at feast once 8 year

« Approving any significant changes to Insurance cover that increase risk to the EEEA; and

= Approving any changes {o EEEA's intemal audit arrangements

Education and Wall Belng Committee

EEEA has an Education and Well Belng Committee comprising no fewer than three members, two of whom are
non-exacutive members. Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board of Trustees. The Committee s
quorum s two non-executive members. The Committea is chaired by a non-executive member. i

The Education and Well Being Commitiee meets at least twice each year.
The Education and Well Being Commiites's responsibility is:

o To receive reports from the CEO and appropriate members of the Executive Management Team: on
clrriculum development and planning.

+ To act as a consultative group to the head teachers in the area of curriculum development.

« To ensure that the school curriculum meets statulory requirements of the National Cumriculum and related
ieglslatlon
7" To ‘ensure that the cumculum meets the full range of needs of childrén placéd at the schbals arid that the
appropriate facllities and resources are in place to support the delivery of the curriculum.

s To receive summary reports from the CEO, broken down by Key Stage, on the overall quality of teaching in
the schools and to act as a consultative group to the CEO on actions required to continuously improve and
maintain the quality of teaching.

« To monitor overall rates of progress of pupils at the schools, by considering the rates of progress of groups
or cohorts of children in care areas.

et
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXGEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

» To compare the rates of progress and attainment of children at the schools with national data on the
attainment of children with simliar needs via nalional data bases, for example, IDSRs (Inspection Data
Summary Report).

The Education and Well Being Commiltee presents’ the*minules of its meelings lo the'Board as.soon as
possible after each mesting. The Education and Well Being Committee mekes recommendations to the Board
as It considers appropriate.

The Human Resources Committea

EEEA has a Human Resources Commitiee comprising no fewer than three members, two of whom are non-
execulive members. Members of the Committee are appolinted by the Board of Trustees. The Commiittes's
quorum is two non-executive members. The Committee is chaired by a non-executive member.

The role of the MAT HR Committee is to scrutinise policies, review performance and make recommendations to
the Board in accordance with agreed Terms of Reference. The HR Committee meets at least three times a
ysar.

The Committee has the following responsibilities with regard to HR:

To ratify all HR policies for the MAT and oversee recruitment, CPD and other HR processes for all staff
To approve schools' staffing structures and appointments of senior staff within the schools’ budget
To- determine the Pay Policy for the MAT, ratify appropriaie salary ranges and oversee performance and
pay of Trust slaff and all Headteachers in the Trust

« To approve (sup}ect to Board approval) annual pay progression for the CEO (by 31 December al the latest),
taking account ‘of .the recommendation made by the Performance' Review .Panel, following the annual
review,

» To oversee the work of the Staff Disciplinary/Dismlssal Committee:and the Staff Appeals Committee
(including pay appeals).

Connected Organisalions, Including Related Parly Relationships
The following organisations are connected organisations:

+ Ravenscote Parent Teacher Association (PTA). The PTA ralses money to enhance the education of the
Ravanscote pupils: it is a charitable organisation, regislered charity number 277432

* Friends of South:Camberey (PTA). The PTA raises money to enhance ihe education of the South
Camberley Primary and Nursery Pupils:: It is a charitable organisation, registered charity number 1132204

« Friends of Westfleld (PTA). The PTA raises money to enhance the education of the Wesifisld pupils. It isa
charitable organisation, registered charity number 1186049

« Friends of Byflest (PTA). The PTA ralses money to enhance the education of the Byfleet Puplls. It Is a’

charitable organisation, registered charity number 1177432
» Friends of Cambridge (PTA). The PTA raises money to enhance the education of the Cambridge Pupils. it
is & charitable organisation, registered charity number 1198305

Engagement with Employees ;-

All staff atlend 8 whole Trust inset day whera we provide Information on the strategy of the MAT and the
schoals' contribution to this. A-staff survey is sent to all schools to identify and address any lssues and we
welcome staff views when making decisions for the whole Trust. Subject specific networks have'been
established for teachers, including, assessment and curriculum groups.

Page 7
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Equallity and Diversity. +

The Trust recognises that it has clear obligations towards all its employees and the community at large 1o
ensure that people with disabllities are afforded equal opportunities to enter employment and progress within
the orgamsalton In addition to complying with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, the organisation
follows procedures designed to provide for fair consideration and selection of disabled appllcants and to satisfy
their tralning and career development needs. When an employes becomes disabled in the course of their
employmenl reasonable steps will be iaken to accommodate their disability by considering adjusiments to
working practices and arrangements, or by considering redeployment and appropriate relraining to enable them
to remain In employment within the organisation wherever reasonably possible.

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others In a Business Relationship with the Trust

Regular, communication via school newsletlers to our parents helps inform and build our relat!onshlps with the
families served by the Trust.

To bulld and maintain our relationships with our suppliers, we communicate regularly and effectively so they.can
galn a more complate understanding of our Trust, allowing them to meet our needs more effectively..We
regularly review the deliverables and performance and ensure we understand the contraclual obligations for
both the supplier and the Trust.

Trustees' Indemnities

The Multi Academy Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s Risk Protection Assurance (RPA), an

alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees

and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on MAT business and
* provides cover up to £10,000,000.00. It Is not possible to quantify the Trustee and Officer indemnity element

from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Objectlves and Alms

Objectives and Aims

The primary ob[éctive_ and activity of the MAT is the operation of its schools to provide education for children of
different abllitles betwean the ages of 2 to 11. The Multl Academy Trust is an inclusive group of schools which
walcomes applications from all pupils; as outlined by-the MAT’s admissions policies.

in accordance with the Aticles, the MAT's objeclive Is to advancs, for the public benefit,-education in the United
. Kingdom in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining and
) carry on, managing design and the built environment and their principal applications.

The Key Aims for the MAT are:

Pl ol id

Exceptional Outcomes for All - to ensure all schools help all pupils to be the best they can be

Long Lasting Impact — to embed school improvement and drive ambition

Equality and Inclusion —to value all people as individuals and treat everyone with respect s
To provida a high-quality primary trust

Objsctives, Strategles and Activities
The main objectives of the Multi Academy Trust during the period ended 31 August 2022 are summarised

o obe|°wv Bl R e R R T L TR Gt i a6 e m e+ % . ———— e ireeTs

Our overall objectives can be broken down as follows:

To achiave consistently high standards of teaching and learning

To manage and develop our staff to ensure we invest in our ‘social capital’

To develop and provide leadership capaclty and support

To strengthen governance at aevery leval to ensure our schools continue to improve

To achleve best value in service delivery espaclally where partnership working can add value
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

e To work with other schools to provide support and develop their curriculum and pupil outcomes

« To engage with key stakeholders, for example, the Regional Schools Commlssmner and recruit high calibre
Trustees and Govemors

¢ To engage in discussions with other schools that may be interested in joining the MAT

« To devélop our ‘cultural capilal' to ensure that our puplls recelve a depth In leaming and expenences

¢ To,continue to develop our buildings and estates to enable puplls and staff to leam and work in well-
maintained environments

Public Benefit

The purpose of lhe Muiti Academy Trust is to advance for public benefit, education as described in the principal
dctivities above. The Trustees, have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guldance on public
benefit published by the Charitles Commission in exarcising their duties.

Main Activities Undertaken to Further the Charity’s Purpose for Public Benefit
Through our govemance model, we ensure we are transparent and follow clear lines of accountability.

The Key Activilies for achieving our objectives are summarised below:

» Consistent and regular monitoring has resulted in high standards in teaching and leaming. Members of the
School Improvement Team undertake regular reviews and assessments of pesformance and outcomes

e The development of quality assurance systems to help develop capacity. This system is bsing developed

across other schools interested in joining the Trust and schools further afield

The development of consistent reporting formats for school evaluation, govemance and reporting {0.Trustes -

Intraduction of a new budgeting system across the MAT to allow for consistent reporting and monitoring

Strengthening MAT govemnance with the committee structure at Trust level

An indspendent staff survey allowing the MAT to examine the development of staff and the effectiveness of

leadership and management

Termly financial raviews enabling the MAT to monltor our finances and account for cost efficlencies

» As a Trust we have worked with 16 different schools to develop thelr standards, work which has helped
Improve our curriculum and develop our well-being agenda

s As a Board,,we have developed our Key Performance Indicator sheets and developsd our systems. for

recruiting new Trustees

Our due dikgence and inlegration documenls have developed and enabled us (o make clear decisions on

schools wanﬁng to join the Trust

. Providing a good quality of remole education and support to schools and staff with this objective
 Ensuring all risk assessments for each schoal are thorough and comply with DFE guldance

« As aBoard, we have developed our reporting formats to assess school data

« Continue to have discussions with schools interested in the work of the Trust

Volunteers

Our volunteers associated with our Trust are PTA (Parent Teachar Assomahons) Volunteers fallow our school
guidelines and enable the PTA to ralse charitable funds which are separate from these accounts.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Multi Academy
Trust has adequate resources fo continus in operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further detalts regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policles.

The Trust has managed to retain its reserves and has strong financial stewardship o ensure it avoid deficits.

Committed projects where possible have been complated and the Trust Central Team monitors the monthly
finances of each schoo! and reports any concemns to the Audit and Risk Committee.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
- (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Achlevements and Performance

« Safeguarding systems were amended to ensure our schools supported our most vulnerabla pupils.

e Schools were innovative with their approaches to motivating and helping the children, from innovative
assemblies to regular lndlvldual phone calis for pupils.
Regular parent surveys enabled us to modify our work and support parents.
The MAT has engaged with a range of stakeholders to ensure strang communication in our schools.

= Regular monitaring when the pupils returned enabled us to identify gaps and utilise the COVID catch up
funding.
All schools were fully staffed for the start of the new school year.

« Attendance at govemance meetlngs was high.

+ Desplte staff shortages causéd by the ongoing covid cases we were able to operate alf our provisions.

Key performance lndicalo_r_s
During the yaar, the Multi Schaol Trust achievements were as follows:

Continuing to meet the objects of the MAT

Reviewing and updaling relevant policles relating to the MAT for 2021/2022

Continuing the tight financlal management of the MAT

Embedding MAT structures and systems following conversion

Continting to develop our Ieadershlp capacity and improve the slandard of teaching

Continuing to develop a skillsled Trustes Board

Appointment of ane new Trusles )

Growing the Cambridga Primary Schaol by 2 classes from September 2021. The school now caters for
childrén up to year'3. The school Is oversubscribed for Seplember 2022 where the school will cater for
chlldren up to year 4. The Cambridge [s in the top ten schools in Hampshire for being hard to get into.

8, Conllnulng {o develop the schools' environments’

10, Tha appointment of new staff (o Senlor positions .

11 A highly posttive staff review on workload and well-being

PN bLN S

Promotlng the Success of the Company

~As a MAT, we continually reflect on strategic dlrecuon. This has led us to develop our central team whifst _
enabling schools to focus on our core business of teaching and leaming. Our decision-making strategy focuses

an our core values:

Trust
Respect
Positivity
Crealtivity
Responslbility
Collaboration
Integrity

What Do These Values Mean?

¢ :Trust: =-: >Tobe ableto rely uponeach other: = i rimmr e mmprmmiv s dpiestcfptm dmm e g 20 e
s Respect: To appreciate and celebrate each other’s bellefs

o Posltivity: To look for solutlons and celebrate success

s Creativity: To turn ideas Into reality

+ Responsibility: To make sure things get done

]

s. Collaboration: To work together to benefit all
« ntegrity: To be hanest and make a posttive dlfference
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" ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Theee values ensure that the MAT treals all stakeholders and suppliers with Integrity and respect.: As a
company we pay close regard to our school communmes and our structures enable schools to retain thair
unique ethos.

The MAT has a clear Code of Conduct to which all Governors and Trustess sign up. This Is based on the Nolan
Principles.

In 2021-2022, Trustees conducted a staff Review to ensure we reflect upon how to improve and adhere to our
velues and pnnclples During each Trustee meeling, we reflect upon the difference we are making to staff and
pupile which enables us to contmue to focus on our vision of creating a high quality primary trust,

Our staff hava Illustrated throughout how they live our values and exemplify high expectaluons Pupil and staff
Well-belng are at the heart of our work and integral to our culiure.

Financla! Review
Review of Activilles
During the year the MAT achievements were as follows:

» Detalled school teaching and {eaming reviews In our & schools, working with all leaders to develop their

curriculum and evidence the impact of each schools quality assurance processes.

Strong financiel capacity, given government funding cuts

Retention and development of key staff

South Camberley Primary and Nursery achieving “Good" Ih Ofsted

Maybury Primary School, South Camberley Primary and Nursery and Ravenscote Junior School achieving

the Well Being Award for Schools

Completion of CIF.project boller warks for Maybury Primary School and Ravenscote Junior School

Compiletion of CIF Praject roof warks for Westfield Primary School

The successful CIF allocation for roof replacements at Byfieet Primary Schoo}

The successful CIF allacation for Fire safety measures at Ravenscote Junior School, South Camberiey

Primary & Nursery School and Westfield Primary School

s, The successful appointment of . new calerer for all Trust schools, which included a new kitchen at Byfleet
Primary School

« The refurbishment of a school building for the central offices

Fundral_s_ing Acdtivities/Income Geue@!lo

All Schools within the MAT follow the same financia! policy. Income Is generated within the schools through a
range of strategies which include:

Before and After School Clubs
Holiday Clubs

. Lettings
School Consultancy Support
Training courses for school leaders

Fir_aancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main financial risks to which Trust schools are exposed, taking into account the mitigations In place, relate
to the risk of income shortfall due o the prospect of further government spending reductions affecting our
general annual grant.

i .
A risk also arises In refalion to the defined benefit pension scheme in which the MAT currently has a pension
daficit in five out of the six schools. This is being addressed through additional contributions.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL AGADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Prdncipal Risks and Uncertainties
The major risks to which the MAT is exposed are:

Shorifalls in funding which may not have been anticipated
Systems fallures '

Falling rolls

Staffing shortages

Changes in funding formulas

Increases In support staff pay

Increases in teacher pay

COVID and staff capacity if there are positive cases
Increase in the level of educational need across our schools
Rising energy costs

Belng unable to recruit teaching assistants due to low applications

> ® » & & 5 % 0 #» o @

Fraud and Mismanagement of Funds

The Trust has engaged extemal auditors to perform a program of work-almed at checking and reviewingsits
financlel systems and records as requlred by the Academies Financlal Handbook. Al finance staff receive
tralning 1o keep them up o date with financial practice requirements and 16 develop their skills in this area.

Throughout the period, the Trust has continved to strengthen its risk,management process throughout the
period byiimproving the process and ensuring staff awareness. The Risk Register Is maintained, reviewed and
updated on a regular basls,

Reserves Pallcy

The Trust's Reserve Policy means that schools reserves are set between 5% and 8% of an in-year budget.
Howsver, it reserves the right to allocata reserved expenditure for larger projects. These projecis are approved
by the Trustees at full Board Meettngs.

Trustees are consclous of the need to provide a cushion to cover financial risks faclng the Trust from reductions
in funding and Incraases in costs.

a Poli forKe Management Personnel

The Pay Policy for key management persanne] has been approved and Is available on request. [tis accessible
on the EEEA's closed site and discussed regularly through the appropriate governance procedures.

I lin nerqy and Carbon Reportin

As the Trust is a large company, as determined by sections 465 and 466 of the Companies Act 2006, and
consumes more than 40,000 KWh of energy (in the UK) in a reporting period, wé have included our UK energy
use and assoclated greenhouse gas emissians, relating to gas, purchased electricity and transport fuel in the
period.

. .The following summarises the energy and carhon use for EEEA Multi-Academy. Tmsl for the academic year

" 2021722 The "MAT IS “comprised of six Bcademies, “employs” 296 siaff members ~(aclual-5taff) ‘and has =Y £ i

2327pupils registered.
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- ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMI_ES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING REPORT

U_R Greenhouse gas emissions and eriorgy use data for the

period 4 Septembsr 2021 to 31 August 2022 202021 2021122

Enérgy ‘conisumption used to calculate emissions (KWh) . 3,224, 600 4,347, 141
Energy consumption break down (kWh) (oplional)
- gas 2,542,282 3,640,439
. eiééln'c'lty 681,564 697,459
- transport fuel 774 9,242
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e “
_ Ga'é't;onsumpfion 465.84 666.78
Owned transpont - mini-buses 0.17 0.24
Total Scope 1 465.81 667.02
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
_Purchased electriclty 144.72 148.08
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 0.01 1.99
Total -g:ro%”s emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 610.64 817.40
Inténsity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupli 0.27 0.35

Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2022 HM Govemment Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protacol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is fotal gross emisslons in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratia for the sector. A

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

BPS - New Roof with improved Inaulation. Close windows and doors, turn heating down. Pool closed earlier this
year,

CPS - Investigating solar panel options and LED lighting

MPS - Automated lights, switch off when no motion for a period of time. Doors and windows now closed'in
classrooms and offices’ (Previous Covid guidance of open doors and windows removed). New boller- improved
efficiency. Drastically réduced heating and hot water hours fo reduce costs. Most things tumed off at plug at
night- Only essentials left on. New fire doors being kept shut to keep heat in the rcoms

RJS - New bollers installed, LED lighting with automatic switch off when out of the room, ell IT equipment
switched off at the end of the day. New fire doors being kept shut to keep heat In the rooms

SCPNS - New fire doors being kept shut to keep heat in the rooms. All staff to ensure that electrical items (i.e.,
SMART boards and PCs) are switched off at the end of the day

Page 13
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
_ (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

L

WPS - Measure taken to Improve energy efficiency include second stage of roof replacement at Westfisld which
will help conserve heat. Also, old lights replaced with new LED lights and new digital whiteboards replacing old
projectors and whiteboards. The boiler is also serviced and maintained to ensure maximum efficlency and ¢ staff
are reminded {0 close windows and doors and swilched off lights and whiteboards when classrooms are not in
use.'New fire doors belng kept shut to keep heat in the rooms

Plans for Future Periods

Future Developments

5
The future plans for the MAT include the following objectives:

To continue to engage with schools Interested in joining the Trust

To continue to develop positive stakeholder relationships in connectlon with the Cambridge Primary School
To continue to devalop the quality of progress and outcomes for the children in our care

To review and embed all governance pracesses as we evolve

To continue to wotk with cammunity groups, strengthening the links between school and home

To continue to develop our due diligence and integration documentation as we incorporate new schools into
the Trust

To develop our governance structure and ensure all governance meetings take place during the day to
support staff workdife balance,

To grow the number of schools in the Trust

Tohavea positive MAT Review with the Regional Schools Commissioner e

To submit further CIF bids ‘

Ensure continued rigorous adherence to all official guidance received In relation to the COVID pandemic for
the safety of pupils, staff and parents.

To support our schools lhrough their Ofsted Inspections

To work with the local authorities to provide school improvement support

To support our Early Career Teachers with their induction

To ambed the new requirements for the Eariy Years Foundation Stage

To conduct detailed reviews on all our schools 1o assess the Impact of their curriculum

To retaln our best staff and grow our reputation as a Trust that atiracts the best quality slaff

To focus on the mental health and well-belng of all our families and staff

. & &6 & o o

Employee Involvement and Employment of the Disabled

Employees have been consulted on issues of concem to them by means of regular consultative committees
and staff meetings and have been kept Informed on specific matters directly by management. The MAT camies
-out exit interviews and has adoptéd a procedure of upward feedback for senior management and the Trustees:

The Mulll Academy Trust has implemented a number of detallad policies in relation to all aspects of personnel
matters including: ;

o Equal Opportunmes Palicy
« Volunteers' Pollcy
. Hga!th & Safety Pollcy

y.o» m-m.—..._...._...-.‘._‘ .;.‘.........‘........4. .-..‘...m_u...--..g..nﬂ Lkid.&’ ey, B e &re
o E— 3

1
wowl oxhous s b

In accordance with its Equal Opportunmes Pohcy, the Multi Academy Trust has !ong-establlshed fair
employment practices In the recruitment, .selectian, retention and training of disabled staff.

Full detalls of these palicies are available from the Multi Academy Trust offices.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

. a‘-
TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Disclosure of Information to Audifors
Insofar as the Trustees are awaré:

ve There is no relevant audit information of which the chantable company‘s auditors are Unaware
« The Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of
any relavant audit-information and to establish that the chantable companys audltors are aware of that
information.

, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
, pnd signed on its behalf by:

P40n00serticscnsarerversnse I I TY TP YT TYITNY

S Norton
Chair of Trustees

bete /612 (2091

&y
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of reaponsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Engage, Enrich, Excel Schools
have an- effectwe and appropriale system of control, financial and olherwme Howaver, any such system is

deslgned to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide -

only reasonable and not absolute asstrance against material misstatement or foss.

The- Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEQ, as Accounting Officer, for
ensunng financial contrals conform with the requirements of both.propriety end good financial management and

in accordance with the. requirements and responsibilities assigned to it In the funding agreement betwesn -

Engags, Enrich, Excel Academles and the Secrelary. of Stale for Education. They are also responsibla for
repomng tothe Boand of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

Governance

The information on govemance Included here supplements fhat described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustess' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met & times during the year with
exira meetings due to COVID 19.-Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as
follows:

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Mestings attended Out of a possible
N Elstub (resigned 30.09.2022) 1 5
J Green (resigned 14.12.2021) 2 2
D Harris (Accounting Officer) 5 5
L Heywood (resigned 14.12.2021) 2 2
J Lovell: 5 5
S Norton 5 5
V Scannella 5 5
C Earls 5 5
E Dell 3 6
A Ozcan 5 5
J Wood (Appointed 13.06.22) 1 1

The Chair of Trustees and the CEO have invested considerable resources Into recruiting skilled Trustees with
the right skill set. We believe that we have achieved this and continually monitor ourseives 1o ensure we
maintain the desired profile.

The Board has devaloped its due diligence processes and this has proved highly effective in enabling Trustees
to make clear strategic decisions to develop the Trust. The committees have provided the Board with key
performancs information.

The Board has devised & clear key performance indicator (KPl) document that enables it to acgess the
effectiveness of schools clearly and concisely. The KP! document has been approved by all Trustees and is
being shared with schools outside of the Trust for schoo! improvement purposes. Documentation produced by
the Board enables Trustess lo self-evaluate Trust governance.

-— e ——— .

e “The MAT has & conflicts of interest g pollcy which sets out the- framework for ensurmg 8l ‘decisions and i decision: -

making processes of EEEA are, and are seen o be, free from personal bias and do not favour any individual,
company, subsidiary, joint venture pariner, assoclates ar other organisation connected with the MAT.

Trustees have an obligation to act in the best interests of the MAT and its constituent schools and, in.
accordance with the MAT's Articles of Assoclation, to avold situations where there may be a conflict of interest.

The Board implemented the commiltee structure and attendance for these committees was as follows for
2021/2022:

\:: Page 16
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Comp_any_le.lted by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance {continued)

Audit & Risk
Trustee.

O Hatris {Accounting Officer)

L Heywood (resigned 14.12.2021)
+J Lovel! -

S Norton:

C Earls (Chair)

'Human Resources Committee

Trustee

D Harrls (Accounting Officer)

E Dell

J Green (Chair) resigned 14.12.2021)
A Ozcan.

S Norton

Education and Wellbelng Committee

'fmstee

N Elstub (Chair) (resigned 30.08.2022)
D Harris (Accounting Officer)
S Norton

Meetings at_ténded

(o105 LIRS S I &)

Meslings attended

WWN wWww

Meetings allended

-

[1
]

Out of a possible

cooeNdo

Out of a possible

W W w

Out of 8 possible

Vv Scannel!a
A Ozcan

O St
(SO R e ]

Review of Value for Money

Ag Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibliity for ensuring that the Multi Academy Trust delivers good value
in the use-of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to thé
 -educational and wider socletal outcomes achievad In return for the tax payers’ resources recelved

The Accounting Officer considers how the Multi Academy Trust's use of ils resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
Improved, Including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Mulli
Academy Trust has delivared improved value for money during the year by:

.
L}

Continufng to meet the ob]ecﬁves of the Trust

Revnewmg and updating any relevant policies relating to the Trust for 2021/22

Malntalnlng and developmg the teachmg slandards and the high oulcomes achleved for puplls at Key Stage
2 with an increased focus on the progress score

Embedding the Trust structures and systems

+ Continulng to develop Ieadershlp capacity and improve the standard of teaching. Central to this has been

the development of a'clear quality assurance system

Ensuring the improvement of the quality of leaming and teaching and making good progress from’ pupil
starting polints

Developing the capacity of the Board
Developing due diligence and integration documents to enable the Board to make effeclive decislons
Developing relalionships with interested schools
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of Intemal contro! is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
faiture in achieving pollcles aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not'absolute
assurarice of effectiveness. The system of intemal control is based on an ongoing process designed lo identify
and prioritise the risks fo the achievement of Multi Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, ta evaluate the
likelihaod of those risks being realised, and the impact, should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Engage, Enrich, Excel Schools
for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up o the dale of approval of the Annual Report and
financial statements,

Capaclty to Handle Risk =]

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks 1o which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed togsther with
the operating, financlal and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board
of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for idenlifying, evaluating and menaging
significant’ nsks to the Multi Academy Trust that has been in place for the year 1st September 2021 to 31st:
August 2022 and'up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and financial statements. This process is
regularly reéviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Multi Academy Trust's system of internal fi nanc»al control is based on a framework of regular management

accountablllty In particular, it includes:

] Comprehensive budgeting and monitonng systems with an annual budget and perlodic financial reports -
which are reviewed and agteed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Financa and General Purposes Commiltee of reporls which indicate financial

performance against the’ forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expend:ture-

programmes,

seltmg targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchaslng (asset purchase ar capital investment) guidelines

Delegahon of authority and segregatlon of duties

identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a spedific internal audit function and has decided to appoint.
Strictly Education 4S as lnlemal Auditor.

The Internal Auditor’s role Includes glvmg advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Multi Academy Trust financial systems. In particulaf, the checks carried out in the current period included:

e Creditors Control

+ Month End Procedures

¢ Purchase Orders and Involce Processing
« Purchases

s Letlings
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s The recording of ESFA funding
e Fixed Assets :
e Purchases 3
* Payroll N
«  Control Account & Bank Recondiliations . r
& VAT Relmbursement '
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company lelted by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) .

The Risk and Control Framewaork (continued)

«On’s quarterly basis, the,Chlef.Operating Officer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Audit and.Risk

Committeé on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees fi nanckal.

- responsibilities.

A

Infernal assurance visits/reports are carried out by Strictly Education 4S. Strictly Education 4S has delivered the
schedu]e of work as_planned, provided comprehansive reports and has identified no issues arising or.any
ramedlal actions needing to be taken.

Revlew of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has resbonsibility for' reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. The work of the Internal Auditor;
. The work of the Exlerna! Auditors
e The financial management and governance self-assessment process
The work of the Chief QOperating Officer and Executive Managers within the Multi Academy Trust who
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the Audit and Risk Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous-

improvement of the system is In place.

¢

S Norton ' D P Harris

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

'Date: /6 //,Z /ZGZZ_ Date: /&3 //2 / 9 OZ 7

1
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ENGAGE, ENRICH 'EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANGE

As Accounting Officer of Engage, Envich, Excel Schools, | have considered my responsibility to notify the hMulti
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriely and non—comphance with.terms and conditions of all funding received by the Multi Academy,Trust,
under. the funding ‘agreement in place between the Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State' for
Education. As part of my consideration, 1 have had due regard fo the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2021

liconfirm that 1 and the Multi Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to Identify any material imegular or
improper use of funds by the Multi School Trusl, or material non-compllance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the Multi School Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are |dentified after the date of this stalement, these will be notified to the Board ‘of
Trustees and ESFA.

DP Harrls

Accounting Officer

Date: /617 /zozz
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMlEs
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial stalements in accordance with the Academiés
Accounts” Diraction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law. the
-Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair View
of-the state of affairs of the charitablé company and of ils mcomlng resources and, applicatlon of resources,
Including Its Income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financlal statements, the Trustess are
required to:

Select sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

L 3
. Observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2021 {0 2022;

. Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unleéss it Is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continua In business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain,
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time tha financial position:

of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companles

Act 2008, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking:

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Iregularities.

The Trustaes are responsible for ensuring thal in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management They are also responsible for ensuring grants recelved from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees_are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financlal information
included the tRaritable ¢ompany’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissgnfination of fi\ancial stataments may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions. 5

pproved by orderpf the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behelf by:

------------------------ Y T T PP Y Y T YT YT

S Norton
Chalr of Trustees

bete: /6112 (9020

Page 21

A e . S s, B o 00 g e o, R 4

Jp—
PTI

N

¢



ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL. ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES

Opinion

We have audited the financlal slatements of Engage, Enrich, Excel Academies (the .academy’) for the year
ended 31 Algust 2022 which comprise the Stalement of Finiancial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financlal
reporting framework that has been applied in their préparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accountlng
Standards’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng Practice), Including Financial Reporting Standard
102 'TheFinancial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019
and thé Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our oplnion the financlal statements:

. give a true and felr view of the state of the academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of Its Incoming.
resources and applicalion of resources, including its income and expanditure for the year then ended;
.. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice; and
~e+  havejbeen. prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basls for opinlon :

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our reaponslbllitias under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are Independent of the academy In accordance with'the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, Including
the Financial Réporting Council's Ethical Standard, and wa have fulfilled our ‘other ethical responsibilities’ in
accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient-and |
appropriate to provide a basis for ouf opinion. 4

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the:ﬁnancla\ statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the golng concern basis of g
accounting in the preparation of the financlal statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have nol Identified any malerial uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, Individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy's ability to continué as'a
gomg concern for a perlod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issiia,

Our responsibilities and the responslbrlltras of the Trustees with respecl to going concern are described in the .
relevant sections of this report. {

e
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

) INDEPENDE?:IT AUDITOR'S REPORT.ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES (CONTINUED)

Other infarmatlon

The othér information comprises .the . information included -in the Annual Report other than the financlal
statements'and our Auditor's Report thereon. The:Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report.?Our opinion on “the financiel statements does not cover the other information and,
except fo the exlent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
concluslon thereon. Our responsibility Is to read the other, information and, in doing so, consider whether the

other mformalion Is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the course

of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material Inconsistencies,or
apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenai
misstatement in the financial statemeants themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinlon on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006

in our opinlon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the Information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared Is conslatent with the financial statements.

. the Truslees' Report and the Strateglc Report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
requlrements ‘4

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptlof{

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and Its enviranment obtained in the course of
the audit; we have not Identifled materiat misstatements in the Trustees' Reporl including the Stralegic Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visiled by us; or

. the financlal stalements are not In agreament with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we hava nol received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustess (who are also the directors
of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial stalemenls
and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal contro! as the Trustees determine
is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materia! misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In prepating the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academys ability fo
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concam basls of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RiEPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES (CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our, objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements as a whole are free,
from material mlsstatemant whether, due to fraud or error, and to lssue an Auditor's report that includes our-
opmuon Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordancs with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraudor.emor and:are considered material if, Individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expacted to inflience the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audil, there Is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those Ieadlng to a material misstatement In the ﬂnanmal statements or non-compliance with regulation. This Tisk
Increases the mare that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transaclions
reflected In the financlal stataments, as we will be less likely to became aware of instances of nan-compliance.

The risk Is also, greater regarding irregularitias occurring dus to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

The specific procedures for this engagement that we designed and performed 1o detect material misstatements
in respect of iregularities; including fraud, were as follows:

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims;

- Enquiry of management and those charged with govemance to identify any material instances of
oncompliance with laws and regulations;

- Reviewing financial statement dlsclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compllance
with applicable laws and regulations;

- Parforming audit work to address the risk of lrregularities due to management override of controls,
Including testing of joumal entrias and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business
rationale of significant iransactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting.
estlmates for evidence of bias.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the ﬁnanclal statements is located on the Financlal

Reporting Councll's website at: www.frc. org. uk/auditorsresponsibililes. This description forms part of our

Auditor's report.
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ENGAGE ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This' report is made solely,to the charitable company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter. 3 of-
Part{16 .of the Companies Act 2006, Our” audit work has béen undertaken so that we_might slate to (he
charitabld company's members those matters we are réquired to state to them in an Auditor's Report and forno
other purpose. To tha fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone olher
than the charitable company and s members, as a hody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Alexander Peal BSc (Hons) FGA DChA (Senlor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

James Cowper Kreston

Chariered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Reading Bridge House

George Street

Readlng

Barkshire

RG18LS

Date: 19 December 2022
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE RERBRT ON REGULARITY TO ENGAGE,
ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15 August 2022 and further (o the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022, we have camiad out an engagement 6 obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income. received by Engage, Enrich, Excel Academles during,the year 1. September 2021 to 31 August
2022'have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
autharities which govern them.

This report Is made solely to Engage, Enrich, Excel Academles and ESFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Engage, Enrich, Exce! Academies
and!ESFA those matters we are required to slate in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
pemiitted by lew, we do not accept or assume responsibliity-lo anyone other than Engage, Enrich, Excel
Academies and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilitles of Engage, Enrich, Excel Academles’s accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer ‘is responsible, under the requirements of Engage, Enrich, Excel Academies's funding
agreement withithe Secretary of State for Education dated 1 December 2014 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1. September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income receslved is
applied for the purpases intended by Parllamenl and the financlal fransactions conform to the authorities Which
govemn them. .
Our responsibilties for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’'s ethical
guidance and are lo obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requu'ements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come .
10 our attentlon In carrying out our work which suggests that in all matéria! respects, expenditure disbursed and v
income -received‘during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes |
inténded by Parllament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authoritles which govern them. H.

Approach

We' conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors' and
_Reporﬂng Accountant of Academy Trusts Issued by ESFA. We perfarmed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter,

The'objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusian on
regularity. 3

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement_and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified In a reasanable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express & positive opinion. 4

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of.
the academy'’s income and expenditure.

As-a fir we have taken the decision to use the Mercla work programme for regularity assurance work as

approved by the ICAEW. The work undertaken to draw aur conclusion includes:

~Ani Assassment of tha risk of material iregulary and Impropriety across all of the trusis activiies: ——~ ~ 7]
Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including enquiry; :

« Identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence across all areas Identified as well ;
as additlonal verification work where considered necessary; and )

« Consideration of evidence abtained through the work dstailed above and lhe work completed as part of our
financial statements audit in order to support the regularity conclusion,

.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantae)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ENGAGE,
ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the' course of our work nothlng has come to our attenfion which suggest in ali material respects the
expenditure disbursed and lncome recejved during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has nat beer
applied to purposes Intended by Parliament and the financial transaclions do not conform ta the authorities
which govern them.

e oy el

Reporting Accountant
~James COWper Kreston
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Readsng Bridge House
George Street
Reading

Berkshire

RG1'8LS

Data: 19 December 2022
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AGTIVITIES {INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Note

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants 3
Other lmc?ing activities
Investments 6
Charitable activities

Total Income

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net
Income/{expsenditure)

Transfers between

funds’ ' 17
Net movement in

funds before other
recognised

galns/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/{losses):

Actuarlal galns/(losses)

an defined benefit

pension schemes 23

Net movement in
funds

Rg_co_nclilatlon of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movament in
funds

Téal— fuhi!s carried
forward

w2 ove am e e,

) Restricted )
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total <« Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
56,991 13,797 1 ,266;605 1,337,393 1,232,090
292,493 49,236 - 341,729 191,891
165 205 - 370 181
171,842 12,609,908 - 12,781,760 12,067,101
521;491 12,673,146 4,266,605 14,461,242 13,491,263
283,471 13,561,955 2,185,048 16,030,474 14,363,834
283,471 13,561,955 2,1 86,04§ 16,030,474 14,363,834
238,020 ' (888,809) (918,443)  (1,569,232) (872,571)
- {271,621) 271,621 - -
238,020 (1,160,330) (646,922) {1,669,232) (872,5'71)
- 7,289,000 - 7,289,000 (1 ,3845000)
238,020 6,128,670 (646,922) 5,719,768 (2,256,571)
631,380  (7,303,240) 32,610,820 25,938,960 28,185,531
(w1 238020 628670 (646,922) 6,718,768  (2,256,571)
869,400 (1,174,570) 31,963,898 31,658,728 25.938.9'60

The Stetement of Financlal Activities Includes all gains and losess recognised in the year.

The noles on pages 31 to 59 form part of these financial statements.

L]
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCHL ACADEMIES:

{A Compnny Limitcd by Guarantou)
‘REGISTERED NUMBER: 09270354
BALANCE BHEET
AS AT-21 AUGUST 2022
2022
Noto £
Fixad asoaots
Tongibls sopets 14 31,878,128
31,879,126
Current coscln
Deblors 15 792,494 126,673
Cash st bank and In hand! 1,503,854 1,302,388
2,206,448 2,031,859,
Crediora: griounts feling due within one o .
year 18 (760,848) (7311431)
Nst current asaets ) 1,535,602,
Tothl:aasdtn icas current linbliitios. 33414728
Defined henefit pension scheme lisblity 23 {1,768,000).
Total net cioéts. 31,668,728
e
Fund) of the acadamy:
Restricted funds:
Fixed synet.funds 17 31,983,898 32,610,820
Restricted income funds 17 681,430 544,760
Reslricted funds excluding pension asset 17 32,846,328 733155580
Pansion rcgerve 17 (1,756,000) (7.848,000)
Totzl restrictod funds 17 30,789,328
Unrestricted income funds 17 869,400
Total funds 31,858,728

by:

CENPREOINEBO NI IIIRIIIITIRINRENICONINININIE

8 Norton
{Cheuir of Trusitess)

Bete: /5119 (7607
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2021

2,486,432

1,300,528

33,786,060
(7,848:000)

25,934,880

e e

631,380

25,838,960

nts oh pages 28 to 56 were approved and authorised for bsue by the Trusteeywrmd are
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'ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by anrantee)

*
i ' STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 19
Cash flows from Investing activities 20
Change in cash and cash equlvalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21,22

- . . .- .
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2022 2021
£ £.
(914,965)  (775,798)
1,116,535 540,505
201,570  (235,203)

1,302,386 1,537,879

1,603,956 1,302,386
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied conslstently,._

except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncerlainty, Is set out below.
Basls of preparation of flnanclal statements
The financial stalements of the academy, which is a public bensfit entily under FRS 102, have besn

prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the Accounﬂng and Reporiing by Charities;

Statement of Récommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their, accounts In accordancé™

with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irelgnd (FRS 102)
(Charitles SORP (FRS 102)), the Academles Accounts Diraction 2021 lo 2022 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

Engage, Enrich, Excel Academies meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
Going concern

The Trustess assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate L.e. whether there are any
materia) uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financlal statements and
have concluded that the academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties- about the academy's ability to
continue as a going concem, thus they continua to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

income

All Incoming resources are recognised when the academy has enmlemant to the funds, the recelpt is
prabable and the amount can be measured reliably,

-

Grants

Grants -are Included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
Income' received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown In the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is recelved in advance of meeting any performance-,
related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the perfonnance—relaled conditions are met.
Where entitliement occurs before Income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant Is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activilies In the year for
which it is receivable and any abateament in respect of the year Is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Shest in the restricted fixed asset fund.
Capttal grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which thay are expended,

Donations

Donations are recognised on a recelvable basis (where thera are no performance-related conditions) -

where the receipt Is probable and the amount can be rellably measured.

Page 31

1 < o e e b s a1 4w 79 S e oo — § T
h e Ve M te .

T e

-

ermran gme e

...,_~.._..._.._____,..,,



ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4:-  Accounting policies (continued)

* 1,3 Income (continued)

« Otherincome

Other income, including the hire of facliities, is recognised In the year it is recéivable and to the
extent the academy has provided the goods or services,

+ Transfer on conversion

Wheare assels and lisbilities are received by the academy on conversion to an academy,.the
{rensferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheel at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownershrp pass to the academy. An equal amount of income is recognlsed
as & transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Danations and Capilal Grants’ to the net assets
received.

1.4 Expenditure

Expendilure is recognlsed once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it Is probable that a transfer of ‘economic benefits will be requlred in
settlement and the amount of the obllgation can be measured reliably, Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs’ of each activity are’ made up of .the total of -direct costs and shared costs,
Including support costs invalved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a smgle
activity are allocated directiy to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one aclivtly
and support costs which are not attributable to a stngle activity are ‘apportioned between those
activities on a basis cansistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

» Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, including support costs ‘and
costs relating to the govermnance of the academy apportioned to charitable activilies.

All resources expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT.
1.5 Government grants
Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to

the Statement of Financial Activities over the expected useful iives of the assets concemed. Other
grants are credited to the Statement of Financial Activities as the related expenditure Is incurred.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets

1.7

1.8

1.9

Assels costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impalrmant,

Where tanglble fixed sssets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
govemment or from the private sactor, they are Included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expecled useful economic life. Where thers are specific conditions attached
ta the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited {0 a restrictad
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheel.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is chargsd direclly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financlal Aclivities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreclation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each assst on e straight-line basis over its
expectad useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following basas:

Leasshold land - 125 years straight line

Leasshold property - 60 years straight line

Furniture and equipment - 10 ysats straight line !
Computer equipment - 3 years straight line

Motor vehicles - 5 years straight line

A review for lmpalrmenl of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the canrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shartfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assete and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpanrment
losses are recognised in the Stalement of Financial Activities,

Interest recelvable

im

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the academy; this is nomally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statemenl of Financial Actlivities on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognisad at the seltiement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and In hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account,
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies {continued)

1.11 Liabllitles and provislons

Liabilitles and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a
result of a past event, it Is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
“and the amount of the settlement can be estimaled reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that'the academy anticipates it will pay to seitle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provislons are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required to setlle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is

recognised within Interest payable and similar charges.

1,42 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined In FRS 102. The financlal assets and
.financlal liabilities of the academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors ara basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured -at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are nol financlal instruments,
Amounts due o the academy's wholly owned subgidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank is classlfied as a basic financial instrument and Is measured at face value.

Financlal liabllities - frade creditors, ‘accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cosl as detailed In note 16. Taxation and soclal security ere not Included In
.the flnancial instruments disclosure definition. Dsferred Income Is not deemed to be a ﬁnancial
liability, as the cash settiement has already taken place and there Is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financlal instrument. Amounts due to the academy’s whally owned
subsldiary are held at face value less any impalment.

1,43 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

# Accordingly, the academy is polentially exempt from taxation in respect of Income or capital gains

received within categories covared by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 19892, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusivaly to charitable purposes.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policlss {continued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefils to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). Thass are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employses' working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future penslonable payroll. The contributions are
detemmined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised In the perlod to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy in separate trustee administered funds. Penslon scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilitles are measured on an acluarial basis using the projected unit credil method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilties. The actuarial valustions are obtained at least
triennlally and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current sarvice costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset Is aiso recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and Interest income on the scheme assels, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the schemes assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Acluarial galns and losses are recognised immediately In other recognised gains and losses.

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charilable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trusteas,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are 1o be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donar and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and {osses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment ¢
Estimales and ludgmenls are conlinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related aclual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment {o the carrying amounts of

assels and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Govemment Penslon Scheme defined benefit liabilty depends, onia
number- of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions, The
assumptions used In determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate.; Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which pro;ects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liabllity at31
August 2021, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and! a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the penslon fiability.

Critical areas of judgmant:

. Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over thelr useful lives taking into account residual values, where
appropriate, Thetactual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. Residuel velue assessments consider issue such as the remaining life
of the asset and projected disposat values.

Income from donations and capltal grants

o Restricted »
Unrestricted Restricted flxed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022 . 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 56,891 13,787 - 70,788 162,721
Ttansrer from Local Authority ..
on academy conversion - - - - 15,422
Capital grants - - 1,266,605  1,266605 1,063,947
Total 2022 58,991 13,797 1,266,605 1,337,393 1,232,090
. t erm e . — v e e T T T A T e I N e T T T e e e A e e WS
Total 2021 90,852 24,109 1,117,128 1,232,090
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ENGAGE; ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t AUGUST 2022

~mes

T S s
F e var e erd

4.  Funding for academy's educational operations

¥

Total

“Unrestricted  Restricted “Total
funds . funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ B
DfE/ESFA grants
‘  General annual grant (GAG) - 10,103,617 10,103,617 9,294,109
Other DIE/ESFA granis v
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 461,520 461,620 636,571
UIFSM - 226,875 226876 260,328
Pupil premium - 676,641 676,641 602,803
_ - - 14,468,663 10,793,81 1
Other Government grants
Special Educational Needs (SEN) . 419674 419,674 373,899
Other LA income - 652,203 662,203 603,353
Other Government grant income - 3,018 3,018 18,035
C - 1,074,895 1,074,895 995,287
Other income from the academy’s
educational operations 171,842 66,360 238,202 74176
COVID-19 additional funding (DFE/ESFA)
Calch-up Premium = - - 203,827
. - - 203,627
. 171,842 12,609,908 12,781,750 12.067,101
' - - . N =
Total 2021 12,148 12,054,953
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Income from other trading activities

e
.

[
I ol T S

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds :
2022 2022 2022 2021 i
£ £ £ £ .
Before & after schoof clubs 180,112 - 180,112 90,899
Hire of facilities 112,381 3,006 115,387 84,767 #
Professional services - consultancy - 46,230 46,230 16,125 i
Total 2022 292,493 49236 341,729 191,891
Total 2021 171,348 20,643 191,891
i
Investment income
3 Unrestricted  Restricted “Total Tola! !
funds funds funds funds. ¢
2022 2022 2022 2021 §
£ £ £ £ i
{‘.
Bank interest 165 205 370 181 i
Total 2021 4 1'(7 181
i ?
Expenditure )
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Academy’s educational &
operations: :
* Direct costs 9,244,511 - 1,224,216 10,468,727 9,412,674 ‘
Support costs e, 1428200 2207391 = 1,838,166 . 5581,747 4,951,160 . .. ..\
Foeedly 1 i v e e v Vv " v 1)) e S eh AT be T L iRes YR e vpe Gew dlme ok TR R atwlmwe, Y30 cwinwwe | - \~—‘li‘}‘,WT
Total 2022 10,670,711 2,297,391 3,062,372 16,030,474 14,363,834,
-~ y
Total 2021 8,847,784 1,864,942 2,651,108 14,363,834
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMI_ES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

. 2
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL-STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Analysis of éxpendlture by activities

Academy's educational operations:

Total 2021

Analysis of direct costs

Pension finance costs
Staff cosls
Technalogy costs
Educational supplies
Staff development
Other direct costs

[

Support Total Total

Direct costs costs funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021

£ £ £ £
10,468,727 5,661,747 16,030,474 14.363,83§

""‘——"—‘—. f e e ——————4 _-—_*-_-—,_.-_.

9‘4_12.674 4,951,160 14.363,@34

Total Tota}

funds funds

2022 2021

£ £

136,000 102,000

8,244,511 8,543,209

191,377 152,559

802431 561,748

90,334 51,144

4,074 2,014’

10,468,727 9,412,674

Some costs have been raclassified betwean direct and support costs following adoption of the DfE's-

Chart of Accounts during 2021/22,
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company IJmm;d by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Analysls of expenditure by activities (continued)

——————
LS -

""—‘_"—'-..=(

Analysis of support costs

Total Total

"~ funds funds

2022 2021

£ £

Staff costs 1,426,200 1,304,575

Depreciation 766,409 724,191
Technology costs 133,295 84,829
Recruitment and support 32,357 9,367
Maintenance of premises and equipment 1,749,343 1,367,235
Cleaning . 248,829 247,286
Renl & rates 61,116 61,612
Energy costs 210,911 172,149,
Insurence 106,860 125,541,
Security and transport 25,014 32,159
Catering 442,817 408,393,
Bank Interest and charges 4 9,419 2, 390
Other support costs 284,212 182,203
Goverance costs 64,966 229, 330
‘Total 2022 5,661,747 4,951,160

Some costs have been reclassifled between direct and support costs following adoption of the- DfE's

Chart of Accounts during 2021722,

Net incmel(expenditure)

Net Income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

. 2022
£ .
Depreclation of tangible fixed asséets 767,746
Fees pald to auditor for: '
~ audit 9,900
<o Other.services e e e 2020
iy v R i be T Sw b Wk Temeraas m afan L madijasaie WATFA VEW a el 2 ke A4 e+
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

o y
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
10. Staff
a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:"

Wages and salaries
Soclal security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs

b. Speclal staff severance payments
During 2022, no settlement agreements wera pald to any members of staff.

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employad by the academy during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Management
Administration and support

Page 41

2022 2021
£ £
7,193,773 6,848,366
687,943 637,018
2,624,457 2,165,347
10,605,873 9,751,730
164,838 96,054
10,670,711  9,847.784
2022 2021

No. No.

105 102

26 27

172 173

303 302
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‘ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ' ACADEMIES
(A Gompany Limited by Guarantee)

e T T NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
10.  Staff (continued)
d. Higher paid staff

The number of employses whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance) exceaded £60,000 was:

. 2022 2021
: _ No. No.

In the Band £60,001 - £70,000 3 2

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 2 1

in the band £80,001 - £90,000 2 1

In the band £120,000 - £130,000 1 1

8. Kay inanagamenl personnel

The key” management personnel of the academy comprise the Trustees and the senlor management
team- as 'listed ‘on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits: (Including employer pension-
contnbullons and employer national insurance cantributions) received by key management personnel for,
their services to the academy was £845,895 (2021: £783,205).

11. " Central services

The academy has provided the following central services to it academiss during the year:
Administrative support to prospective new academies;
Human resources;

Flnancla! services;
Others as arising. .

The acad_é[ny charges for these services on the following basls: ~

Conlﬂbuubn rates are -charged to the Academles on the basis of thelr annual statement. During the year,
the following percentages were charged during the year/period:

, Ravenscole Junior School - §%

South Cambedey Primary and Nursery Schaot - §%
Weslfield Primary School - 5%

Maybury Primary Schoo! - 5%

Byfleet Primary School - 5%

The Cambridge Primary - 5%

“ . P P P LI ~ § oA T A g 4 N S T . o [E p . ooty
Y B B Cou T S Y 1 TP PSP & PR e v U K5 S 00 S L o P Iy SIS e rae i 8w e R N Was hgabases B @l piR o el
DO WO TR AT TRy
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

.Central services {continued)

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Ravenscate Junior School 123,816 81,638
South Camberley Primary and Nursery School 123,972 125,113
Waestfield Primary School 89,951 66,286
Byfest Primary School 49,209 27,511
Maybury Primary School 48,233 33,460
Thé Cambridge Primary School 49,261 6,954
Total 484,442 340,962

Trustees® remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been pald remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff Trustess only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefita was as follows:

2022 2021
: £ £
D Harmis (Head Teacher and Accounting Remuneration 420,000 - 126,000 120,000 - 125,000

Officer)
Pension contributions 15,000 - 20,000 25,000 - 30,‘000

paid

During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses have been Incurred (2021 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilstion
academy business. The Insurance provides cover up to £40,000,000. It is rot possible to quantify the
Trustees and officars indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALX STATEMENTS
* FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Tanglble fixed assats

Cost or valuation

. §:AA':§.1 September 2021

Additions
Disposals

At 31'August 2022

Depreciation

At 1 September 2021
Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 August 2022

Wit

Net book value

At 31°August 2022

At 31 August 2021

-,y -4, L. e .
LR T e R TR Y =N A0 B
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Long-term
leasehold Plant and )
property  machinery Total :
‘£ £ £ v
33,607,503 1,228,478 34,825,681, ‘f
- 150,440 150,440
- (17,282) (17,282)
33,697,503 1,361,336 34,958,839
1,829,022 510,227 2,339,249
512,361 245,385 767,746
- (17,282) (17,282)
2,341,383 738,330 3,079,713
31,266,120 623,006 31,879,126
rm—— pee——— e
31,768,481 717,951 32,486,432
w T AN L W . el SSILA N e Sah
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ENGAGE, EN_RICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Tangible fixed assets {continued)

On conversion, the brought forward land and bu;ldings of £6,416,000 for Ravenscote Junior School ware
valued on 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015. The value shown in these accounts is at 31 March 2015
as this Is the date closest to the conversion date for the Academy and in the opinion of the Trustees more
appropnate The bulldings are deprectated from that date, The land and buildings are held under a 125
year lease agreement commencing 1 December 2014 at a peppercom rént.

On conversion from a locally maintained school to an academy trust, South Camberley Primary School
received land and-buildings: valued at £7,006,133 on a 125 year long ferm lease commencing, 29
November 2017. The valuation was dated 31 March 2014 by Surrey County Council and this value was
accepted by the Trustees as appropriate, The butldlngs are depreciated from that date.

On conversion from a locally maintained school to an academy trust, Wesifield Primary School received
land and bulldings valued at £3,904,502 on a.125 year long term lease commencing 28 June 2018. The
valuation was dated 31 March 2014 by Surrey County Councll and this value was accepted by the
Trustees as appropriate. The buildings are depreciated from that date.

On completion of construction, The Cambridge Primary School received land and buildings valued at
£8,688,550 on a 125 year long term lease from Hampshire County Gouncll commencing 2 July 2018.

The valuation was datéd 2 July 2018 and performed by DVS Property Specialists. The buildings are
depreciated from that date.

On conversion from a locally maintained school lo an academy trust, Maybury Primary School recelved
land and’buildings valued at £3,450,000 on a 125 year long term lease from Surrey County Council
commenclng 1+ June 2019. The valuaﬂon was dated 13 March 2018 and performed by Briton Knowles.
The bulldings are depreciated from that date.

On converslon from a locally maintained school to an academy trust, Byflest Primary School received
land -and buildings valued ‘at £4,196,000 on 125 year long term lease from Surrey County Coungll
commencing 1 May 2020. The valuation was dated 8 March 2019 and performed by Bruton Knowles. The
buildings are depreciated from that date, .

Debtors
2022 2021
£ £
Other debtors 286,626 222,631
Prepayments and accrued income §05,869 506,942

792,494 729,573

i
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

16.  Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Olher creditars

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2021
Resources daferred during the year
Amounts released from pravious periods

-

2022 2021
£ £
272 -
300,489 325,084
106,730 100,984
353,355 305,363
760,846 731,431
2022 2021
£ £
194,465 196613
130,554 191,465
(181,465)  (198,813)
130,554 191,465

Al the balance shest date the academy trust was holding funds of £14,296 (2021: £31,202) received in

advance for rates relief and £134,626 (2021: £151,463) for UIFSM.,

DeEmas A s socinwie w Lt o - ‘ S b e N rea e viw ey %
ety AT ATl ' Sl AR ew ke s ab, e 14 satam v meRi iR URMILIOLOLSIE PO &
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company ylmiled by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN;fS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-AUGUST 2022

Statement of funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Galns/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure Infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds:;,
Genesral funds 631,380 521,491 (283,471) - - 869,400
Restrlcted
general funds
MAT fund 29,373 29,520 (522,916) 484,442 - 20,419
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 611,676 10,103,617 (9,302,400) (766,963) - 556,930
Pdpil premium - 676,641 (676,641) - - -
SEN - 419,674 (418,874) - - -
Interest fund 3,711 370 - - - 4,081
Other ESFA
grants - 481,770  , (461,770) - - -
Uj FSM - 226,876 (226,875) - - -
Staff Insurance
-cover’ - 1,440 {1,440) - - -
Other Local
authority * - 655,221 (655,221) - - -
Other trading - 3,006 (3,006) - - -
Donations - 13,797 (13,797) - - -
Professional”
services - 16,710 (16,710) - - -
Other. - 64,505 {64,505) -~ - -
Pension
reserve (7,848,000) - (1,197,000) - 7,289,000 (1,766,000)
{7,303,240) 12,673,146 (13,561,955) (271,524) 7,288,000 (1,1 74,‘5_70)
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

"NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditurae infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Regtri cted
fixed asset
funds
Devolved
Formula Capital
assets 303,420 - {219,503) 289,222 - 383,139
Devolved
Formula Capital
cash 196,683 50,518 (98,058) (99,281) - 48,862
Other capital 78,926 - - 415,965 - 194,881
Other capltal -
cash 34,048 39,502 (56,925) 19,285 . 35,910
CIF cash 150,741 1,176,585  (1,263,656) (63,670) . -
Inherited on ,
conversion 31,845,472 - (644,376) . - - 31,301,096
PTA funding for .
minibus 2,530 - {2,530) - - -
32,610,820 1,266,606  (2,185,048) 271,521 - 31,963,898
Total
Restricted .
funds: 25,307,680 13,939,751 (15,747,003) - 7,289,000 30,789,328
Total funds 25,938,960 14,481,242 (16,030,474) - 7,289,000 31,658,728

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted Funds

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the
Academy that has been provided to the Academy via the Education Skills and Funding Agency by the
Department for Education. The General Annual Grant fund has been set up because the GAG must be
used for the normal running costs of the academies.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the

..y

amount of GAG |t could carry forward at 31 August 2022, - Humor g e N RE R

L R O T ™ o»“o’ﬁ-\w
: Tl edrie E A sbed

The Slart up grant was recelved on conversion to academy status to assist with the legal and
administrative costs of setting up an academy.

The Pupll Premium fund represents the restricted pupil premium income received for the purposes of
supporting children who have been eligible for free school meals at any point in the last six years, The
relevant expenditure incurred is recorded through this fund.

The SEN fund represents the specific funding received for named children with exceptional needs and
Page 48
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Gyara_ntqe)

1 4
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Statement of funds (continued)
the relevant expenditure is recorded against this.

The Other resiricted income fund has been created to recognise all sundry sources of restricted Income
from varlous sources that are individually immaterial in value. The relevant restricted expenditure is then
also recorded through this fund.

The Children's Centre fund was created to recogmse the grant income received from the Local Authority
to run the Children’s Centre on the Trust's premises. The centre closed in October 2019 and the Local
Authority clawed back unspent funding. The remaining surplus has been transferred to South Camberley
Primary and Nursery School réserves.

The Pension reserve fund has been created to separately identify the LGPS pension deficit inherited from
the local authorily upon converslon to academy status, and through which all the pension scheme
movements are recognised.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
The Inherited fixed assets fund has been set up to recognise the tangible assets gifted to the, Multi
Academy-Trust from a Jolning school upon conversion which represent the school sile lncludmg the

Jeasehold land and buildings and all material items of plant and machinery included therein. Depreciation

charged on those inherited assets is allocated to the fund.

‘Devolved formula capital fund represents grants from the local authority for capital maintenance of the

school site. This is based on student numbers.
The Other capital fund has been created to recognise all sundry sources of restricted fixed asset income

from "varlous sources that are individually immaterial in value. The relevant restricted fixed asset
expenditure is then also recorded through this fund,
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- ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL. ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS : :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31- AUGUST 2022
17. Statement of funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding year Is as follows;;
Balance at Balance at
1 September - Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income  Expenditure infout {Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrastricted
funds .
General funds 716,224 274,352 {82,003) (277,193) - 631,380
Restricted
genetal funds
MAT fund 252,465 10,635 (462,001) 228,274 - 29,373
General Annual N
Grant (GAG) 137,635 9,293,017 (8,430,668) (488,308) - 511,676
Pupil premium - 602,803 (602,803) - - -
SEN - 373,899 (373,899) - T - -
Interestfund 3,544 167 - - - 3,711
Other ESFA  ° *
grants - 636,671 (636,571) - - -
UIFSM - 260,328 (260,328) - - -
Other LA
income - 29,050 (28,050) - - -
Other, Local
authority - 826,307 (826,307) - - -

Other trading - 4,418 (4,418)

Donations - 23,209 (23,209)
Professional

: §erv!c'es - 6,400 (6.400)
Oth’er. - 32,978 (32,978)
Pension
reserve (5,681,000) - (783,000)

(1,384,000) (7,848,000

(5.287,358) 12,089,782 (12,471,632)  (260,034)

(1,384,000)  (7,303,240)
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August.
2020 income Expenditure infout (Losses) - 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted
fixed asset
funds .
Devolved
Formula Capital
assels 222,077 126,264 (422,221) 377,300 - 303,420;
Devolved
Formula Capital .
cash 24,700 11,056 - 159,827 - 195,683
Other capital 44,075 34,851 - - - 78,926
Other capital - .
cash 15,717 18,331 - - - 34,048
CIF cash 37,218 926,627 (813,104) - - 150,741
Inherited on
conversion 32,418,165 - (572,693) - - 31,845,472
PTA funding for
minibus 4,711 - (2,181) - - 2,530
32,766,663 1,117,129  (1,810,199) 637,227 - 32,610.8'20'
Total
Restricted
funds 27,479,307 13,216,911 (14,281,831) 277,183  (1,384,000) 25,307,680
8 N
Total funds 28,195,531 13,481,263 (14,363,834) - (1,384,000) 25,938,960
oo o = F—————— —— 3%

————
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

17. Statement of funds (continuod)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were sllocated as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Ravenscote Junior School 428,220 379,840

South Cambtley Primary and Nursery Schoal 245,082 95,887

Westfield Primary School 146,894 289,718
The Cambridge Primary School 220,844 62,087
Maybury Primary School 167,971 170,295
MAT central fund 20,451 29,373
Byfleet Primary School 231,368 148,840
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 1,450,830 1.17§.‘140;
Restricted fixed asset fund 31,963,898 32,610,820
Pension reserve {1,766,000) (7,848,000)
Total ‘s 31,658,728 25,938,860
FEE e = Enledine s waieg, 5 ooa U

Page 52

PRk N




17.

L

18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Expenditure incurrad by each academy during the year was as follows:

Ravenscole
Junior School

Sauth
Camberilsy
Primary and
Nursery School
Woestfield
Primary School
The Cambridge
Primary School
Maybury Primary
School

Byfleat Primary
School

MAT central
fund

Academy

.

Analysls of net assets betwaen funds

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Cradltars due within one ysar
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
2,026,618 469,875 242,253 849,117 3,587,863 2,837,150
2,030,533 574,008 207,136 894,070 3,708,747 3,742,804
1,661,464 374,426 136,472 984,579 3,166,941 2,938,487
771,613 225020 ¢ 106,350 267,380 1,370,373 810,155
853,863 390,826 62,939 265,769 1,673,397 1,484,749
733,883 251,127 46,001 273,507 1,304,528 1,226,162
105,527 201,918 1,280 256,491 565,216 490,136
8,183,511 2,487,200 802,431 3,790,923 15,264,065 13,630,643
Analysis of net assets between funds - curreat year
'Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds finds
2022 2022 2022 2022.
¢ £ £ £ £
27,193 - 31,851,933 31,879,128
1,142,696 1,041,787 111,965 2,296,448
(300,489)  (460,357) - (760,846)
- (1,768,000) - (1,7586,000)
869,400 31,668,728
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
- {A Company Limited by Guarantee)

' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

18.  Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Restricted
Unrestricted ~ Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed asssts - - 32,486,432 32,486,432
Current assets 631,380 1,276,191 124,388 2,031,959
Creditors due within ons year - (731,431) - (731,431)
Pravisions for liabllities and charges - (7,848,000) - - (7,848,000)
Total 631,380 (7,303,240) 32,610,620 25,939_,9?0
18. Reconciliation of net expenditure to nst cash flow from operating activities
- 2022 2021
¢ £ £
Net expenditure for the year (as per Statemant of Financlal Activities) (1,668,232) (872,571).
Adjustments for:
Depreclation 757,746 724,180
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,266,605) (1,063,947)
Interest rece|vable (370) (181)
‘Defined benéfit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 1,197,000 783,000
Increase in debtors (62,920) (199,219)
Increase/(decrease) In creditors 29,416 (147,070)
Net cash used in operating activities * (914,965)  (775,798),
20. Cash flows from Investing activitles
2022 2021
) £ £
=% Dividends;:interast and-rentsfrom investments— sz sz = = ms wee =e  sinoy 23700 vm o ABTsuns
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (160,440) (523,623)
Capital funding received from sponsors and others 1,266,605 1,083,947
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,116,635 540,505
f———————§ e T ——
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

21.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
£ £

Cash in hand and at bank -1,603,956 1,302,388

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,603,956 1,302,386

22.  Analysis of cl_1angé; in net debt
At1

September At 31

2021 Cash flows August 2022

£ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand 1,302,386 201,668 1,603,954

1,302,386 201,568 1,503,954
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Pension commitments

The'academy’s employeas belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Schemg;
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS)' for non-eaching’ staff, which is managed by Surrey County Council and Hampshire County
Councll. Both are multi-employar defined benefit schames.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related fo the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2018.

Contributions amounting o £174,399 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £169,703)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Penslon Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these conltributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds pmwdgd by Parliament,

Valuation of the Teachers‘ Pension Scheme

The. Government Actuary. using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuanal review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions -
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review Is to specify the level of future -
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,,
désign of bensefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carrled oul as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on § March 2019;
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
lavy)

. fotal scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notionat assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving.a
nofional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, Is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% abovs the rate of CP), assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of pnces
and 2% in excess of eamings. The rale of real eamifgs growth is assumed o be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of retum Includmg eamings growth is 4.45%,

The next valuation res(gllt_i‘s due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,
The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,123,143 (2021 - £1,015,321).

A eopy-of:the valuation;report-and supporting -documentation is- on -the: Teachers-Pensions.- website-
(https:/Awww taacherspensuons co.uk/news/employers/201 9I04Iteachers-pensions-valuatuon-:eport aspx).

Under the deﬁnltions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mult-employer pension scheme. The

academy has accounted fot.its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Pension commitments (continued)
Loacal Governmtent Pension Scheme -
The LGPS Is:a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assels held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £640,000' (2021
- £598,000), of-which employer's contributions totalled £493,000 (2021 - £469 000) and amp!oyees
conlributions totalied £ 147,000 (2021 - £129,000). The agreed contribution rates’ for fulure years are
18.9-19.8 per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.
As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the cenversion from the maintained school and new employees: who
ware eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation In respect of employeesiwha
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the pradecassor school and the
academy at the balance sheet date.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of Stale for Education, lo a guarantee that, in the.
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force an 18 July 2013.
Principal actuarial assumptions

2022 2021

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 320
Rate of increase for pensions in paymeant/inflation 3.3 220
Discount rate for scheme liabllities Al 1:70

-

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expeactations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021

Years Years
Retliring today
Males 22,5 226
Females 25.0 24,9
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.8 23.8
Females 26.7 26.5
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO 1:I-IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022
Penslon commitments {(continued)
Share of schemo assets .

The academy’s share of the assets in the schame was:

At31 At 31 August

August 2022 2021
£ £
‘E_quitié‘s \ 5,306,000 5,085,000
"‘C__orporate bonds 982,000 1.09:.3,000'
Property 561,000 476,000
Cash and other liquid assetls 139,000 135,000
Other . 21,000 20,000
Total market value of assets 7,009,000 6,819,000
The actual retum on scheme assels was £-353,000 (2021 - £-1,181,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities are as follows:
el 2022 2021
£ £
Current service cost (1,564,000) (1,150,000)
Interest income 118,000 00,000
Interast cost {254,000)  (192,000)
£
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (1,690,000)  (1,252,000)
] m_’

£

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
At 1 September 14,687,000 10,728,000
Current service cost 1,654,000 1,1 50.09(?
interest cost : 254,000 1 92,900
Employae contributions 147,000 139.900
Actuarial (gains)/losses {7,760,000) . 2,493,000
Benefits paid (36,000) (35,000)
At 31 August 8,826,000 14,667,000
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ENGAGE, ENRICH, EXCEL ACADEMIES
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Penslon commitments (continued)
Changes in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:
o 2022 2021
. £
At 1 September 6,819,000 5,047,000
Interest 118,000 90,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains (474,000) 1,108,000
i .
Employer conlributions 493,000 469,000
Employee contributions 147,000 139,000
Benefits paid {36,000) (35,000)*
At 31 August 7,070,000 6,819,000
Members' liability

Each -member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year afler he/she ceases to be a:
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before helshe ceases to be a member.

Related party transactlons

No relaled party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’

remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 12,

Controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is that of its trustees as detailed on page 1 of the financial statements.
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